# **Diversity, Inclusion, and Leadership Resources**

The University of Illinois, Urbana-Champaign Graduate School of Library and Information Science Center for Digital Inclusion

Compiled by Miriam Sweeney July 3<sup>rd</sup>, 2012

The Center for Digital Inclusion views the concepts of inclusion, diversity, and leadership as inextricably linked. All of these concepts describe ways of relating to both ourselves and other people with the purpose of fostering greater understanding of, and improving, the human condition. As practices, inclusion, diversity, and leadership require that we start with ourselves in examining power and privilege before we attempt to develop an ethics of looking outward to our interactions and relationships with other people. Inclusion, diversity and leadership also require that we examine institutional and structural power as a force that is always operating in conjunction with individual actions.

These resources are offered in support of fostering linkages between inclusion, diversity, and leadership, and are for use by students as well as by instructors in designing curricula and lesson plans. These resources are not meant to be comprehensive; rather this is a dynamic repository for sharing readings, exercises, and knowledge around diversity, inclusion and leadership in our LIS community.

# Diversity, Inclusion, and Leadership Resources

# July 3, 2012

# **Table of Contents**

Grad School 101	3
Dis/orienting to GSLIS	3
How to ask for a letter of recommendation	3
How to read all those books and articles for graduate school	3
Writing Resources	6
Professional Resources	6
Job-seeking Resources	6
Salary Negotiation	7
Inclusion in LIS Curriculum	7
Academic Libraries	7
Archives	7
Community Informatics	8
Information Organization	9
Museums	11
Pedagogy	12
Public Libraries	12
Research Epistemologies	13
Technology Studies	13
Youth Services	14
<b>Diversity Resources</b>	14
Being an Ally	14
Critical Race Theory	14
Diversity and Multiculturalism in LIS	15
Disability	16
Gender	17
LGBTQ	18
Microaggressions	19
Race and Racism	20
White Privilege and Whiteness	22
Leadership	23
Epistemologies	23

## **Grad School 101**

## **Dis/orienting to GSLIS**

### **Exercise 1: Assumptions About LIS**

#### Brainstorm on board:

- What kinds if assumptions do you have about LIS?
- About the role of LIS work in society?
- About LIS professionals?
- About LIS school?

#### Reflect:

- 1. What kinds of *values* are present in these assumptions?
- 2. Take stock of your social position (race, class, gender, sexuality) and your privilege. How do these inform the assumptions you have about the role of LIS in society, who serves and is being served, the nature of access to information, and knowledge creation?
- 3. Go back to the brainstorm and critically question the assumptions put forward. For whom do they benefit? Who is not considered? How is power articulated (i.e. who has it and who does not, how is it used, for what purpose)?
- 4. How might we continue to challenge the assumptions we have about our work and the order of things, generally?

#### How to ask for a letter of recommendation

GSLIS alum Dr. Sarah Park authored an excellent blog post on walking students through the process of asking for a letter of recommendation. She covers whom you should ask, how to go about asking, what information to provide to your recommender, and what to do after the letter is written for you. This is valuable practical advice as well as a lesson in academic etiquette.

https://readingspark.wordpress.com/about/letters-of-recommendation/

## How to read all those books and articles for graduate school

(Originally blogged by GSLIS doctoral student, Miriam Sweeney at <a href="http://miriamsweeney.net/2012/06/20/readforgradschool/">http://miriamsweeney.net/2012/06/20/readforgradschool/</a>.)

In graduate school the work load increases and students will find that they are expected to master two or three times the material that they were used to as an undergraduate. This can be intimidating to the point of overwhelming a student into paralysis. Following these tips should help you master your readings instead of the readings mastering you!

1. **Read Strategically, Not Linearly.** Reading for graduate school is different than reading a book for pleasure. When we read for pleasure we often start at the beginning of the book, reading carefully in a linear fashion. If you do this with your academic material, it will take twice as long and it is likely you won't retain the right kind of information from the reading. *Instead of reading linearly, read strategically.* As an academic reader your job is to mine the text you are reading for information. Instead of cruising along the narrative, you need to dive in, find the information you need, and move along to the next stack of readings for class.

If you are reading a book this means you should look over the table of contents, then read the entire introduction carefully. In academic books, the introduction is where the author states all of their main points, the framework they will use, and an outline of what information will be covered in each chapter. Next, look over the last chapter. This is the conclusion, which will restate the main arguments of the author and will often contextualize these arguments in a broader context, suggest next steps, or speculate solutions or alternatives. From here you can go to the parts of the book you want deeper knowledge about. Individual chapters will be laid out similarly to the book structure with an introduction, and middle and the conclusion. Skimming the beginning and end of the chapter will give you the main points, then you can gather evidence by browsing the middle parts of the chapter. Remember, you are not really expected to read every single word of the book; your mandate is to understand the author's main ideas, arguments, and be able to articulate why this discussion matters.

If you are reading a journal article, start by checking the name of the journal that published the article. This will key you in to the scope and boundaries that the article is working within. Next, carefully read the title and the abstract of the piece. A good abstract should clearly explain the main argument of the article, the kind of evidence the author uses, and a succinct conclusion, or what the author found out. Armed with this information, look over the introduction to see how the author is framing their work, paying attention to the citations they use. This tells you who the author is trying to be in dialogue with. Next, flip to the discussion section. Sometimes this is separate than the conclusion, sometimes not, depending on the disciplinary standards of

the author and journal. Read the discussion and conclusion carefully. These sections will explain the author's main arguments and the "why you should care" piece. Now you can go back through the article armed by the knowledge of where the author is leading you and browse over methods and results sections. Pay attention particularly to images and data visualizations. Note how these things relate to or support the discussion and conclusion sections you read.

Reading strategically instead of linearly will make you a more efficient and effective academic reader. Getting familiar with how different formats of writing are structured will give you the confidence and control to find the information you need in them more efficiently.

2. Take Notes! As you are reading strategically, you absolutely must take notes simultaneously. Otherwise it is guaranteed you will not remember the kinds of details you need to recall in class, in your paper, in your own research down the road. Develop a system of your own whether it is sticking a post-it note in the book and jotting something down, or opening up RefWorks or Zotero, or Word and throwing some notes down as you read. Whatever you do, remember that future you will have NO IDEA what present you is thinking, no matter how brilliant a thought it is. Be specific, include detailed citations and pages numbers for direct quotes so you don't have to chase them later.

If you are reading as preparation for a class, make sure you are also jotting down 3-5 questions, observations, or provocations that you can use in class for participation. In grad school, everyone is expected to participate on a high level, so have something to say ahead of time to avoid the high-blood pressure that comes from your professor's cold, hard stare.

- 3. Be purposeful. Being purposeful in your readings means that as you are moving strategically through the text you are also being deliberate about what you want to glean from the reading, what are meant to glean, and how this fits with the other readings and conversations you have had in class, along with your own life experiences. Ask yourself, "What is the author trying to say? What is motivating her exploration of this topic? What does this research contribute? What academic conversations is the author trying to align with? What are the main arguments of this piece? How does this relate to my other assigned readings?" Going in with these questions in mind will focus you as you read and aid you in pulling out the most relevant information.
- **4. A Critical Perspective.** Lastly, applying a critical perspective in your reading is helpful for situating a reading in broader contexts. Contrary to how it sounds, being critical does not simply mean being negative

or criticizing wantonly. Critical perspectives are those that trace and name flows of power: Who has power and who does not? Who benefits from particular social arrangements, and whom do they marginalize? Critical perspectives also question assumptions and values that are implicit in arguments: What values are underlying this work? What experiences and perspectives do these values privilege? How might centering different values or experiences reframe the argument or conversation? Asking questions like this will help you have deeper conversations about your readings, and really, isn't that the whole point of graduate school?

#### Other resources:

A post by Tara Kuther, Ph.D. on About.com giving study tips for graduate school: "Graduate School versus College: You'll Need Different Study Skills"

## Writing Resources

## **UIUC Writer's Workshop**

The UIUC Writer's Workshop provides free writing consultations and writing assistance from student editors. You can bring your work at any stage of the writing process and get feedback on your work. <a href="http://www.cws.illinois.edu/workshop/">http://www.cws.illinois.edu/workshop/</a>

#### **Resources for Writers**

Provided by the UIUC Writer's Workshop, this site provides resources for writers including a grammar handbook, citation styles, ESL resources, and writing tips.

http://www.cws.illinois.edu/workshop/writers/

#### **Professional Resources**

## **Job-seeking Resources**

#### Frequently Asked Interview Questions

(Compiled by students at the School of Library and Information Science at the University of South Carolina)

<u>LISjobs.com</u> has <u>library-specific resume-writing advice</u> as well as job advertisements and career-development information.

## **Salary Negotiation**

In 2008, Emerita Dean and Professor Leigh Estabrook presented a "Salary Negotiation Workshop" full of advice for students as they contend with job offers. The archived recording is available at the following link (requires Windows Media Player or Real Media Player): <a href="http://waterfall.lis.uiuc.edu/dl/classes/ala/alaapr01">http://waterfall.lis.uiuc.edu/dl/classes/ala/alaapr01</a> 08 2.ram

#### **Inclusion in LIS Curriculum**

#### **Academic Libraries**

Black, K. (2010). What books by African American women were acquired by American academic libraries?: A study of institutional legitimation, exclusion, and implicit censorship. Lewiston, NY: Edwin Mellen Press.

Epps, S. K. (2008). African American women leaders in academic research libraries. *Portal-Libraries and the Academy*, 8(3), 255–272.

Hall, T. D. (2012). The Black body at the reference desk: Critical race theory and Black librarianship. *The 21st-Century Black Librarian in America: Issues and Challenges*, 197.

Spencer, D. D. (2012). Academic art librarianship and the Black librarian. *The 21st-Century Black Librarian in America: Issues and Challenges*, 93.

#### **Archives**

#### **Readings:**

Dunbar, A. (2006). Introducing critical race theory to archival discourse: Getting the conversation started. *Archival Science*, 6, 109–129.

Gilliand, A. (2011). Neutrality, social justice and the obligations of archival education and educators in the twenty-first century. *Archival Science*, 4, 1-17.

Jimerson, R. (2005). "Embracing the Power of Archives." Society of American Archivists, Presidential Address

Schwartz, J. & Cook, T. (2002). Archives, records, and power: The making of modern memory. *Archival Science*, 2(1/2), 1-19.

Summit, J. (Spring, 2003). Monuments and ruins: Spenser and the problem of the English library. *ELH*, 70(1), 1-34.

### **Exercise 1: Putting Yourself in the Archive**

From the Ethnography of the University methods (http://www.eui.illinois.edu/methods exercises s14.html):

Write about an item or object that has meaning for you and that you would want to have archived—say, for example, at the U of I Student Life and Culture Archive. How would you want it classified, labeled, and stored?

## **Community Informatics**

#### **Readings:**

Alkalimat, A., & Williams, K. (2002). Social capital and cyberpower in the African American community. In, B. Loader & L. Keeble (eds.), *Community Informatics: Shaping Computer-Mediated Social networks* (177-204). London: Routledge.

Bishop, A.P., Mehra, B., Bazzell, I., & Smith, C. (2003). Participatory Action Research and digital libraries: Reframing evaluation. In, A. P. Bishop, N. Van House, & B.Buttenfield (eds.). *Digital Library Use: Social Practice in Design and Evaluation*. Cambridge, MA: MIT Press.

Carlson, S. (2010). Documenting the experiences of African Americans, Native Americans, and Mexican Americans: Archivists partnering with oral historians. In, Smallwood, C. (ed.) *Librarians as community partners: An outreach handbook* (129-131). Chicago: American Library Association.

Craig, A. (2010, Fall). High impact partnership: Serving youth offenders. *Young Adult Library Services*, 20-22.

Diaz, R. (2009). After school mobile literacy: Serving youth in underserved neighborhoods. *Teacher Librarian*, 36, 37-38.

Dunatov, K. B. (2010). Outreach to the Russian-speaking community in the Arapahoe Library District, and serving multicultural patrons at the Arapahoe Library District. In, Smallwood, C. (ed.) *Librarians as community partners: An outreach handbook* (144-145; 148-150). Chicago: American Library Association.

Leonard, M. (2010). Día de los niños/día de los libros. In, Smallwood, C. (ed.) Librarians as community partners: An outreach handbook (127-128). Chicago: American Library Association.

Leye, V. (2009). Information and communication technologies for development: A critical perspective. *Global Governance IS*, 29-3.

Luyt, B. (2004, August). Who Benefits from the Digital Divide?. *First Monday*, 9(8).

O'Neil, D. (2002). Assessing community informatics: A review of methodological approaches for evaluating community networks and community technology centers. *Internet Research: Electronic Networking Applications and Policy*, 12, 76-102.

Page, M. & Scott, A. (2001). Change agency and women's learning: New practices in community informatics. *Information, Communication & Society*, 4, 528-559.

Puente, M. A., Gray, V., & Agnew, S. (2009). The expanding library wall: Outreach to the University of Tennessee's multicultural/international student population. *Reference Services Review*, 37, 30 – 43.

Ramos-McDermott, A. (2008, Fall). REFORMA and YALSA: Working together to reach Latino youth. *Young Adult Library Services*, 19-22; 42.

Selwyn, N. (2006). Digital division or digital decision? A study of non-users and low-users of computers. *Poetics*, 34, 273 – 292.

Shatara, B. A. (2010). Laptop literacy: Language and computer literacy services to refugees in Burlington, and the long journey to Vermont: Immigration, cultural identity, and book discussions that build community. In, Smallwood, C. (ed.) *Librarians as community partners: An outreach handbook* (139-143). Chicago: American Library Association.

Warren, J. R., Hecht, M. L., Jung, E., Kvasny, L., & Henderson, M. G. (2010). African American ethnic and class-based identities on the World Wide Web: Moderating the effects of self-perceived information seeking/finding and Web self-efficacy. *Communication Research*, 37, 674–702.

#### **Information Organization**

#### **Readings:**

Danna, A. and Gandy, O. (2002). All that glitters is not gold: Digging beneath the surface of data mining. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 40, 373–386.

Friedman, B., & Nissembaum, H. (1996, July). Bias in computer systems. *ACM Transactions on Information Systems*, 14(3), 330-347.

Furner, J. (2007). Dewey deracialized: A critical race-theoretic perspective. *Knowledge Organization* 34(3) (2007), 144-168.

Noble, S. U. (2012, Spring). Missed connections: What search engines say about women. *bitch*, 12(54), 37-41.

Olson, H. (1998). Mapping beyond Dewey's boundaries: Constructing classificatory space for marginalized knowledge domains. In Bowker, G.C., & Star, S.L. (eds.), *How Classifications Work: Problems and Challenges in an Electronic Age*, a special issue of Library Trends 47(2), 233-254.

Olson, H. (2001). The power to name: Representation in library catalogs. *Signs*, 26(3), 639-668.

Palmer, C. L., & Malone, C. K. (2001). Elaborate isolation: Metastructures of knowledge about women. *Information Society*, 17(3), 179-194.

Roberto, K. R. (2008). *Radical Cataloging: Essays at the Front*. (K. R. Roberto, Ed.). McFarland.

### **Exercise 1: Cataloging Yourself**

Imagine that you have written a biography of your life and work and are now cataloging it.

- What subject headings would use to describe the book? How many of these subject headings actually appear as authoritative headings under Resource Description and Access (RDA) guidelines? What are the limits of the authority headings?
- What keywords might you tag this book with in a user-generated catalog? What terms might other people use to search for your book?
- Ask a friend, family member or classmate to provide subject headings for your book. How are their suggestions similar or different than your own?
- Reflect on what it means to describe the "aboutness" of your biography, and of any work. How do your own subjectivities and positionality impact how you describe your biography?

### Museums

### **Readings:**

Boast, R. (2010). Museum as contact zone revisited. *Museum Anthropology*. 33(2).

Eaton, A. W., & Gaskell, I. (2009). Do subaltern artifacts belong in art museums? In J. O. Youngessor & C. G. Brunkessor (Eds.), *The Ethics of Cultural Appropriation* (235–267). Wiley-Blackwell.

Golding, V. (2009.). *Learning at the museum frontiers : identity, race and power*. Farnham, England: Ashgate Pub. Co.

Lonetree, A. (2006). Missed opportunities: Reflections on the NMAI. *The American Indian Quarterly*, 30(3/4), 632-645.

#### **Exercise 1: Alternative Museums**

Browse the website for the Jim Crow Museum of Racist Memorabilia: <a href="http://www.ferris.edu/htmls/news/jimcrow/more.htm">http://www.ferris.edu/htmls/news/jimcrow/more.htm</a> and <a href="http://www.ferris.edu/htmls/news/jimcrow/menu.htm">http://www.ferris.edu/htmls/news/jimcrow/menu.htm</a>

#### Reflection:

- What is the mission of this museum?
- How does this museum challenge historical notions of what museums preserve?

## **Exercise 2: Couple in a Cage**

Watch Guillermo Gómez -Peña and Coco Fusco's "Couple in a Cage" performance art video:

http://jag85.com/classes/lis502su11/COUPLE\_IN\_A\_CAGE.m4v

#### Reflection:

- What is this video responding to?
- Describe the different reactions of people in the video to the couple in the cage. What is the framework that makes their reactions possible?
- How does the power of museums as institutions factor into the performance of this piece?

## **Pedagogy**

### Readings:

Accardi, M., Drabinsky, E., & Kumbier, A. (2010). *Critical library instruction:* theories and methods. Duluth, Minn.: Library Juice Press.

Delpit, Lisa. (1988). The silenced dialogue: power and pedagogy in educating other people's children. *Harvard Educational Review* 53(3), 289-298.

Freire, Paulo. (2008). *Pedagogy of the Oppressed, 30<sup>th</sup> anniversary edition*. New York: Continuum.

Jones, A. (2004). Talking cure: The desire for dialogue. In, Boler, M. (ed.) *Democratic dialogue in education: Troubling speech, disturbing silence* (51-67). New York: Peter Lang.

Leckie, G. J., Given, L. M., & Buschman, J. E. (2010.). *Critical theory for library and information science: exploring the social from across the disciplines*. Santa Barbara, Calif.: Libraries Unlimited.

McCarthy, C. (1994). Multicultural discourses and curriculum reform: A critical perspective. *Educational Theory*, 44(1).

Pawley, C. (1998). Hegemony's handmaid? The library and information studies curriculum from a class perspective. *The Library Quarterly*, 123–144.

#### **Public Libraries**

#### **Readings:**

Augst, Thomas. (2007). Faith in reading: Public libraries, liberalism, and the civil religion. In , Augst,t. (ed.) *The Institutions of Reading: The social life of libraries in the United States* (148-183), Amherst, MA: University of Massachusetts Press.

Berman, S. (2006, February). Classism in the stacks: libraries and poor people. In *Street Spirit* a publication of the American Friends Service Committee.

Bishop, A.P., Tidline, T, Shoemaker, S., & Salela, P. (1999). Public libraries and networked information services in low-income communities. *Libraries & Information Science Research*, 21(3), 361-390.

MacCann, D. (1989). Libraries for immigrants and 'minorities': A study in contrasts. In MacCann, D. (ed.) *Social responsibility in librarianship: Essays on equality* (97-116). Jefferson, NC: McFarland and Company.

Mont, R. R. D. (1986). Race in American librarianship: Attitudes of the library profession. *The Journal of Library History (1974-1987)*, 21(3), 488–509.

Muddiman, D., Durrani, S., Dutch, M., Linley, R., Pateman, J., & Vincent, J. (2000). Open to all? The public library and social exclusion. London: The Council for Museums, Archives and Libraries.

Stevenson, S. (2011). New labour in libraries: the post-Fordist public library. *Journal of Documentation*, 67(5), 773–790.

## **Research Epistemologies**

### **Readings:**

Scheurich, J. and Young, M. (1997). Coloring epistemologies: Are our research epistemologies racially biased? *Educational Researcher*, 26(4), 4-16.

Twine, F. W., & Warren, J.W. (eds.) (2000). *Racing Research, Researching Race: Methodological Dilemmas in Critical Race Studies*. New York: New York University Press.

# **Technology Studies**

#### **Readings:**

Landström, C. (2002). Queering Feminist Technology Studies. *Feminist Theory*. 3(3), 295-314.

Pacey, A. (1983). The culture of technology. Cambridge, MA: MIT Press.

Sinclair, B. (2004). Integrating the Histories of Race and Technology. In *Technology and the African American Experience: Needs and Opportunities for Study*. Cambridge, MA: Massachusetts Institute of Technology Press..

Wajcman, J. (2009) Feminist Theories of Technology. *Cambridge Journal of Economics*.

Winner, L. (1980). Do artifacts have politics? Daedalus, 109(1), 121-136.

#### **Youth Services**

**Readings:** 

## **Diversity Resources**

## Being an Ally

## **Readings:**

Ahmed, S. (2004). Declarations of whiteness: The non-performativity of anti-racism." *borderlands* 3(2).

#### **Online Resources:**

The Do's and Don'ts of Being a Good Ally Trans-Ally Tips

#### **Campus Resources:**

Ally training through student affairs.

### Exercise 1: Leadership as an Ally

What might leadership look like in the context of being an ally?

## **Critical Race Theory**

#### **Readings:**

Bell, D.A., Jr. (1980). "Brown v. Board of Education and the Interest Convergence Dilemma." Harvard Law Review 93: 518-533.

Crenshaw, K. (1991). Mapping the margins: Intersectionality, identity politics, and violence against women of color. *Stanford Law Review*, 43(6),

1241-1299.

Collins, P. H. (1991). *Black Feminist Thought: Knowledge, Consciousness, and the Politics of Empowerment*. New York: Routledge.

Delgado, R. (1984). The imperial scholar: Reflections on a review of Civil Rights literature. *University of Pennsylvania Law Review*, 132(3), 561-578.

Delgado, R. & Stefancic, J. (2001). *Critical race theory: An introduction*. New York: New York University Press.

Matsuda, M. (1989). Public response to racist speech: Considering the victim's story. *Michigan Law Review*, 87(8), 2320-2381.

## **Diversity and Multiculturalism in LIS**

#### **Readings:**

Burnett, K., Subramaniam, M. M., & Gibson, A. (2009). Latinas cross the IT border: Understanding gender as a boundary object between information worlds. *First Monday*, 14(9).

Honma, T. (2005). Trippin'over the color line: The invisibility of race in library and information studies. *Interactions: UCLA Journal of Education and Information Studies*, 1(2).

Hussey, L. K. (2009). Why librarianship? An exploration of the motivations of ethnic minorities to choose library and information science as a career. *Advances in Library Administration and Organization*, 28, 153-217.

Jaeger, P. T., Bertot, J. C., & Franklin, R. E. (2010). Diversity, inclusion, and underrepresented populations in LIS research. *The Library Quarterly*, 80(2), 175–181.

Jaeger, P. T., Subramaniam, M. M., Jones, C. B., & Bertot, J. C. (2011). Diversity and LIS Education: Inclusion and the age of information. *Journal of Education for Library & Information Science*, 52(3), 166–183.

Patterson, L. (2000, Summer). History and status of Native Americans in librarianship. *Library Trends*, 49(1), 182-193.

Pawley, C. (2006). Unequal legacies: Race and multiculturalism in the LIS curriculum. *Library Quarterly*, 76(2), 149-169.

#### **Online Resources:**

• The <u>LIS Access Midwest Program (LAMP)</u> is a rich source of resources, funding opportunities, mentorship, and programs meant to encourage students from historically underrepresented groups to enter the field of LIS. Their <u>Diversity Resources</u> page includes:

#### **Associations of Ethnic Libraries**

- Joint Conference of Librarians of Color
- American Indian Library Association (AILA)
- Asian Pacific American Librarians Association (APALA)
- Black Caucus of the American Library Association (BCALA)
- Chinese American Librarians Association (CALA)
- The National Association to Promote Library & Information Services to Latinos and the Spanish Speaking (REFORMA)

#### Resources on Encouraging Diversity in LIS

- Association of Research Libraries (ARL) Initiative to Recruit a
  Diverse Workforce
- ARL Diversity Programs
- Synergy: News from ARL Diversity Programs
- ALA's Diversity Counts
- Research on Campus Diversity by *The Chronicle*
- Education Libraries: Outreach to Minority Populations
- Leaders Wanted: Mentoring and Retaining Librarians of Color
- Bibliography of Diversity Resources (PDF)

(See the LAMP Diversity Resources website for more information and resources.)

• The Association of College and Research Libraries (ACRL) has a list of Native American resources and sites for online research.

#### **Exercise 1: Comparing Diversity Statements**

Pick two or three diversity statements from professional associations (e.g. ALA), LIS institutions, or educational institutions (e.g. UIUC, GSLIS) and compare and contrast them.

- How is "diversity" being defined in these documents?
- What/who is featured?
- What/who is omitted?

## **Disability**

### **Readings:**

Adam, A., & Kreps, D. (2006). Enabling or disabling technologies? A critical approach to web accessibility. *Information Technology & People*, 19(3), 203–218.

Goodley, D., & Moore, M. (2000). Doing disability research: Activist lives and the academy. *Disability & Society*, 15(6), 861–882.

Linley, R. (2000). [Working Paper] *Public libraries, disability and social exclusion*. Available at:

http://www.seapn.org.uk/content\_files/files/vol3wp11.pdf

McRuer, R., & Bérubé, M. F. (2006). *Crip Theory: Cultural Signs of Queerness and Disability*. NYU Press.

Oliver, M. (1996), *Understanding disability: from theory to practice*, London: Macmillan.

Siebers, T. A. (2008). *Disability Theory*. University of Michigan Press.

#### Gender

#### **Readings:**

Carmichael Jr., J. V. (1994). Gender issues in the workplace: Male librarians tell their side. *American Libraries*, 25(3), 227.

Harris, Roma M. (1999, Fall). Gender and technology relations in librarianship. *Journal of Education for Library and Information Science*, 40(4), 232-246.

Hickey, A. (2006). Cataloguing men: Charting the male librarian's experience through the perceptions and positions of men in libraries. *Journal of Academic Librarianship*, 32(3), 286-295.

Hossfeld, K. (1990). "Their logic against them": Contradictions in sex, race, and class in the digital valley. In Ward, K. (ed.) *Women workers and global restructuring*. Ithica: Cornell University Press.

Gregg, M. (2008). The Normalisation of Flexible Female Labour in the Information Economy. *Feminist Media Studies*. 8(3), 285-299.

Ridgeway, C. & Correll, S. (2004). Unpacking the gender system: A theoretical perspective on gender beliefs and social relations. *Gender and Society*. 18(4), 510-531.

Wiebe, T. J. (2004). Issues faced by male librarians: Stereotypes, perceptions, and career ramifications. *Colorado Libraries*, 31(1), 11-13.

Williams, C. L. (1992). The glass escalator: Hidden advantages for men in the "female" professions. *Social Problems*, 39(3), 253-267.

## **LGBTQ**

### **Readings:**

Alexander, L.B., & Miselis, S. (2007). Barriers to GLBTQ collection development and strategies for overcoming them. *Young Adult Library Services*, 5(3), 43-49.

Beiriger, A., & Jackson, R.A. (2007). An assessment of the information needs of transgender communities in Portland, Oregon. *Public Library Quarterly*, 26(1-2), 45-60.

Greenblatt, E. (2011). The Internet and LGBTIQ Communities." In Greenblatt, E. (ed.) *Serving LGBTIQ Library and Archives Users: Essays on Outreach, Service, Collections and Access* (42-50), North Carolina: McFarland & Company, Inc.

Helton, R. (2010). Diversity dispatch: Reaching out to LGBT library patrons. *Kentucky Libraries*, 74, 14 – 16.

Holt, D. B.(2011). LGBTIQ teens – plugged in and unfiltered: How Internet filtering impairs construction of online communities, identity formation, and access to health information. In Greenblatt, E. (ed.) *Serving LGBTIQ Library and Archives Users: Essays on Outreach, Service, Collections and Access* (266-277), North Carolina: McFarland & Company, Inc.

Jones, A. A. (2011). School libraries can make a difference." In Greenblatt, E. (ed.) *Serving LGBTIQ Library and Archives Users: Essays on Outreach, Service, Collections and Access* (70-80), North Carolina: McFarland & Company, Inc.

Macintosh, L. & Bryson, M. (2008). Youth, MySpace, and the interstitial spaces of becoming and belonging." *Journal of LGBT Youth*, 5(1), 133-142.

Mathson, S. & and Hancks, J. (2006). Privacy please? A comparison between self-checkout and book checkout desk circulation rates for LGBT and other books." *Journal of Access Services*, 4(3-4), 27-37.

Mehra, B. & Braquet, D. (2007). Library and information science professionals as community action researchers in an academic setting: Top ten directions to further institutional change for people of diverse sexual orientations and gender identities." *Library Trends*. 56(2), 542-565.

Ritchie, C. & McNeill, D. (2011). LGBTIQ issues in public libraries. In Greenblatt, E. (ed.) *Serving LGBTIQ Library and Archives Users: Essays on Outreach, Service, Collections and Access* (59-69), North Carolina: McFarland & Company, Inc.

Sedgwick, E. K. (1990). *Epistemology of the closet*. Berkeley: University of California Press.

Waldman, M. (2011). Libraries and the transgender community. In Greenblatt, E. (ed.) *Serving LGBTIQ Library and Archives Users: Essays on Outreach, Service, Collections and Access* (26-41), North Carolina: McFarland & Company, Inc.

Warner, M. (1993). Fear of a Queer Planet: Queer Politics and Social Theory. Minneapolis: U of Minnesota Press.

## Microaggressions

#### **General Readings:**

Bonilla-Silva, E. (2006). *Racism Without Racists: Color-blind Racism And the Persistence of Racial Inequality in the United States*. Lanham, MD: Rowman & Littlefield.

Gallagher, C.A. (2003). Color-blind privilege: The social and political functions of erasing the color line in post race America. *Race Gender and Class*. 10(4), 22-37.

Harwood, S., Huntt, M. B., & Mendenhall, R. (2010). *Racial Microaggressions at the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign*.

Solorzano, D., Ceja, M., & Yosso, T. (2000). Critical race theory, racial microaggressions, and campus racial climate: The experiences of African American college students. *The Journal of Negro Education*, 69(1/2), 60-73.

Sue, D., Bucceri, A., Lin, A., Nadal, K., & Torino, G. (2007). Racial microaggressions and the Asian American experience. *Cultural Diversity and Ethnic Minority Psychology*. 13(1), 72–81.

Tynes, B. (2010, April 10). Colorblind racial ideology linked to racism, both online and offline. *News Bureau Illinois*. Available at: <a href="http://news.illinois.edu/news/10/0421online.html">http://news.illinois.edu/news/10/0421online.html</a>

#### Video:

Excedrin for Racial Tension Headache, Saturday Night Live <a href="http://www.hulu.com/watch/1605">http://www.hulu.com/watch/1605</a>

#### **Online Resources:**

The Microagressions Project: <a href="http://www.microaggressions.com/">http://www.microaggressions.com/</a>

## **Exercise 1: Reflecting on Microaggressions**

For one week observe your own and other people's verbal interactions and detect examples of microaggression. Be observant in both your work/school space as well as your personal space.

- Describe at least one example of a microaggresion you observed/experienced from work/school and one from your personal life which you detected this week or remember from another time.
- What did you think and feel when you observed/experienced the microaggression?
- In what ways did your observation experiences this week affect your perception of the effects of discrimination, prejudice, and/or stereotypes on people.

#### **Exercise 2: Institutionalized Aggressions: The Chief**

Research the controversy surrounding the former University of Illinois, Urbana- Champaign mascot, "Chief Illiniwek." How might the presence of the Chief as mascot, or as an unofficial mascot still worn on tee-shirts by students on campus, be understood in the framework of microagressions?

#### Race and Racism

#### **General Readings:**

Brown, M. (2003). Whitewashing race: the myth of a color-blind society. University of California Press.

Fredrickson, G. M. (2002). *Racism: A Short History*. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.

Jensen, R. (2005). *The Heart of Whiteness: Confronting Race, Racism, and White Privilege*. San Francisco, CA: City Lights Publishing.

Omi, M and Winant, H. (1994). *Racial Formation in the United States:* From the 1960's to the 1990's. New York: Routledge.

Tatum, B.D. (1992, Spring). Talking about race, learning about racism: The application of racial identity development theory in the classroom. *Harvard Educational Review*, 62(1), 1-8.

#### Video:

Jay Smooth. "How I Stopped Worrying and Learned to Love Discussing Race," TEDx Talk, November 16, 2011: <a href="http://www.illdoctrine.com/2011/11/my\_tedx\_talk\_how\_i\_stopped\_wor.html">http://www.illdoctrine.com/2011/11/my\_tedx\_talk\_how\_i\_stopped\_wor.html</a>

### **Exercise 1: Racial Projects**

Read Omi and Winant's chapter on racial projects.

- Discuss examples of macro and micro levels of racial projects in broader society. Which of these are racist racial projects and which are attempting to dissolve inequalities?
- Consider the world of LIS- what kinds of macro and micro racial projects can you articulate at the university, department, classroom, research, and job levels? Which of these are racist racial projects and which are attempting to dissolve inequalities?
- What is the value of naming racial projects? How can this knowledge be used to work towards racial inequality?

#### **Exercise 2: Racist Jokes**

In Jensen's first chapter he discusses racist jokes, arguing that racist jokes are only possible in the context of systems of racial inequality such as white supremacy, in the same way the sexist jokes are only possible under patriarchy.

- Reflect on a time that someone has told a racist joke in your presence. What were the components of the joke? Who was the subject of it? What makes the joke "funny"?
- Why do you think the teller shared this joke with you? Who else was present? What made it "safe" for the teller to involve you in the joke? How did you feel during the telling of the joke? How did you respond?
- According to Jensen, what is the point of racist jokes? How does Jensen's anecdote about his painful experience confronting his friend about the joke make you reflect on your own experience?

## White Privilege and Whiteness

### **Readings:**

Duster, T. (2001). The 'morphing' properties of Whiteness. In Rasmussen, B.B., Klinenberg, E., Nexica, I.J., & Wray, M. (eds.) *The Making and Unmaking of Whiteness* (111-137). Durham: Duke University Press.

Harris, C. (1995) Whiteness As Property. In Crenshaw, K. et al (Eds.). *Critical Race Theory: The Key Writings That Informed the Movement*. New York: The New York Press.

Jensen, R. (2005). *The Heart of Whiteness: Confronting Race, Racism, and White Privilege*. San Francisco, CA: City Lights Publishing.

Lipsitz, G. (1995). The possessive investment in whiteness: Racialized social democracy and the "white" problem in American Studies. *American Quarterly*, 47(3), 369-387.

McIntosh, Peggy. (1989). White privilege: unpacking the invisible knapsack. In *Peace and Freedom*. 10-12.

## **Online Resources:**

Southern Poverty Law Center, "Teaching Tolerance" site has classroom activities for K-12 and Professional Development Activities around issues of tolerance, cultural competency, and social justice: http://www.tolerance.org/

#### **Exercise 1: Unpacking the Knapsack**

Who are you and how does that shape your experience in the world? Read Peggy McIntosh's article and "unpack" your knapsack of privilege.

- Follow through McIntosh's checklists- reflect on your thoughts as you consider the different privileges she lists. Had you considered these privileges before this point?
- What other kinds of privilege do you have access to (gender, race, class, sexuality, age, ability)? Make your own checklists to help you unpack these privileges as well.
- What does it mean that privilege is invisible to those who have it? How does this function to protect privilege?
- How does privilege structure your values systems and views of the world? How might privilege inform your views about LIS as a field? About the kinds of questions you ask in the classroom? About policies you might support in a job? About areas of research you consider important?

#### **Exercise 2: Two Stories of Success**

In Jensen's second chapter he tells the story of his life and success in two different versions (pages 22-23). Read these stories closely. One of his stories accounts for the benefits afforded to him through white privilege and the other does not.

Reflect on your own stories of how you became who you are today. Write two short versions of your life story in the same way Jensen did- one accounting for privilege and the other not. Jensen focuses on white privilege and if that is applicable to you focus on that, otherwise use other kinds of privilege to inform your story (gender, sexuality, class, ability, age, etc.) (300-500 words each) Consider the following reflection questions:

- How would the story change if you were focusing on other another kind of privilege (race, gender, sexuality, class, ability, age)?
- How did it feel to tell your story in ways that account for privilege? Were certain versions easier than others to write or think about? If so, why do you think that is?

## Leadership

## **Epistemologies**

#### Readings:

Bernal, D. D. (2002). Critical race theory, Latino critical theory, and critical raced-gendered epistemologies: Recognizing students of color as holders and creators of knowledge. *Qualitative Inquiry*, 8(1), 105–126.

Rusch, E. A. (2004). Gender and race in leadership preparation: A constrained discourse. *Educational Administration Quarterly*, 40(1), 14–46.

Warner, L.S., & Grant, K. (2006). American Indian ways of leading and knowing. *Leadership*, 2, 225-44.

#### **Campus Resources:**

The <u>Illinois Leadership Center</u> offers programs, resources, and training that support leadership training, including a <u>certificate program</u>.

#### **Exercise 1: What is Leadership?**

Brainstorm on board: What is "leadership"?

## Diversity, Inclusion, and Leadership Resources

July 3, 2012

#### Reflection/discussion:

- What values or assumptions are implicit in these different concepts?
- Who is being led, by whom, and to where or what purpose?
- How might your positionality (in terms of race, gender, class, sexuality) influence how your assumptions or preferences about leadership practices?
- Reflect on the articles by Bernal, Rusch, and Warner (listed in the readings that support this module)- how do these different views of leadership map against the different epistemologies presented in their articles?
- How might we define or understand service in relation to leadership?
- How might we define or understand diversity or inclusion in relation to leadership?
- What would an ethics of leadership need to account for?
- Is "leadership" even a useful term? What would alternative terms be to better describe what we are talking about?